WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD
AGENDA
Tuesday, 24 September 2013 commencing at 9.00 am
Professional Excellence Centre, Acre Lane, Bromborough
1.

09:00 APOLOGIES AND INTRODUCTIONS

2.

09:05 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

3.

09:05 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING (Pages 1-6)

4.

09:10 ATTAINMENT FOR ACADEMIC YEAR 2012-13

5.

09:30 PUBLIC HEALTH COMMISSIONING FOR CHILDREN 2013-14 (Pages 7-12)

6.

10:00 DEVELOPMENT OF AN EARLY YEARS STRATEGY (Pages 13-18)
10:20 BREAK

7.

10:30 REVIEW OF THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AND BOARD
MEMBERSHIP (Pages 19-38)

8.

10:45 WIRRAL COUNCIL BUDGET OPTIONS (Pages 39-56)

9.

11:30 ANY OTHER BUSINESS

Date and time of 2013/14 meetings
19 November 2013
21 January 2014
18 March 2014
20 May 2014
15 July 2014

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda
Item
3
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S
TRUST
BOARD

1151

MINUTES
Minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday, 16th July 2013

Present: Cllr T Smith (Chair), Cllr W Clements, Cllr C Meaden, J Hassall, J Webster, V
McGee, M Kilcoyne, S Dainty, G Robinson, J Martin, S Dainty, J Owens, L Cooper, S Brown,
J Welsh.
In Attendance: T Little (Minutes), E Hartley, Z Munby, D Robbins, C McKenna, V Stafford.

1.0 APOLOGIES
K Podmore, R Longster, S Patterson, L Loughran, B Morgan, G Batchelor
Councillor Smith welcomed Solvi Westrum to the meeting who is observing as part of
Continual Professional Development.
2.0 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
None.
3.0 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING
The minutes were agreed as a true record.
4.0 INTENSIVE FAMILY INTERVENTION PROGRAMME
Elizabeth Hartley presented the item. One of the key areas is school attendance and there is
good evidence that this is improving. At the next meeting a full update on impact will be
presented. Elizabeth outlined her paper on how the IFIP model is progressing and becoming
a driver for providing services differently with one assessment, one lead professional and one
plan. She added that there is evidence of improvement in collective intelligence in supporting
families and this evidence has also come from families who feel better supported. The
information sharing will be held in a central database, case management will be accessible
for all key workers working with families.
The values of the IFIP project are based around challenge and building resilience. It adopts
a “Think Family” approach.
Elizabeth described the core offer and services/interventions will be provided on a “needs”
basis, meeting the needs of families on a locality level.

Page 1
Page 1

Elizabeth highlighted the evaluation process including the production of score cards, and cost
benefit analysis. She added that funding has been extended to Wirral to support the troubled
families of almost a further £1m.
Ch. Sup. J Martin commented that anti social behaviour has risen recently; this could be due
to the recent good weather.
Cllr Smith asked what support/training available to partners to support this project. Elizabeth
outlined the process and the role of partners to provide the “super light” area of support to
families. This training is available to all partners working with children and families, not just
those who are commissioned.
Julia commended on the value of this project to support children and families on helping
families early to help safely reduce the number of children.
Cllr Meaden asked about the exit strategy from the IFIP. Elizabeth outlined the exit strategy
and noted that there is after care support from Homestart. The whole purpose of the
programme is to build resilience and building an extended family network to provide support.
Elizabeth and B Morgan reported that Key Workers are reporting high job satisfaction as they
can see the impact this way of working is having directly on the families involved.
Cllr Smith asked which areas are most affected. Elizabeth noted Seacombe, Rock Ferry and
Tranmere.
Resolved: The board note the report.

5.0 SOCIAL AND ECONOMIC WELLBEING ANNUAL REPORT
Vivian Stafford outlined the SEWB annual report. The SEWB strategy group will disband as
the new Achievement and Economic Wellbeing Group is now in place.
For post 16 cohorts all attainment measures have increased, especially the latest position
with care leavers in NEET which increased from 48.0% in 2012 to 58.0% in 2013.
Highlights include:
-

3622 young people using U-Explore Careers software.
56 young people engaged in youth contract.
49 young people engaged with the ‘Get Involved’ programme with 73% sustained
positive outcomes.
Greater Merseyside Connexions Partnership (GMCP) has started to recruit 4000 young
people, 134 from Wirral to date to the ‘New Horizons’ programme.
6 LAC have progressed to Higher Education.
800 people attended the “Your Future, Your Choice”, conference for learners with
SEND.
427 people are on the Wirral apprentice programme.
Birkenhead Sixth Form College had good outcomes at the last inspection.
192 young people have come through Response gateway with homelessness issues
52 required an initial assessment from Social Care.

Key Challenges:
-

Deliver participation age.

Page 2
2

-

Keep reducing NEET.
Narrow attainment gap at 19.

Resolved: The Board note the report.

6.0 SAFEGUARDING BOARD UPDATE
Caroline McKenna and David Robbins gave an outline the Pan Cheshire/Merseyside Child
Exploitation Multi-Agency Strategy 2013/14.
A profiling process where information sharing around possible victims and perpetrators will
enable better monitoring and investigation of vulnerable young people.
The information sharing protocol is being streamlined and meetings are in place. Feedback
is that Wirral SCB is one of the first LSCBs to do this in the area. A template for data
collection was shared with the Board.
In terms of awareness raising with children and families it is really important that the
community are involved in this as they are the eyes and ears, especially the night time
economy. Briefings from WSCB are in place for over the summer, there are also some top
tips for parents on the WSCB website.
J Owens asked whether school or “Teen Wirral” would be used for publicity Caroline
commented that the feedback from schools is very good.
Caroline updated on the disruption of perpetrator activity is being led by the police.
Perpetrators are very well connected and travel great distances.
WSCB will nominate a board member to act as a Lead Professional to organise quarterly
meetings to review:-

Performance
Local implementation
Areas of concern
Identify patterns/trends
Develop local strategies

Caroline updated that Dennis Charlton has ceased to be WSCB Chair as his 3 year tenure is
at an end. Bernard Walker has been successful in this appointment and will joint the
Children’s Trust.
Resolved: The Board note the report.

7.0 LINK FORUM ANNUAL REPORT
L Loughran outlined the report. The background to the Link Forum and the strong links that
are forged with the Children and Young People’s Department (CYPD) were outlined. The
Link Forum secures the communication channel between the Voluntary Community and Faith
Sector and the LA and is highly valued by both.
The report outlined progress to the year end 31 March 2013 against the Service Level
Agreement Targets. Key projects include support for the implementation and development of

Page 3
3

the common induction programme across the Children’s Workforce and the Child Poverty
eLearning module.
Cllr Smith asked about the individual links between the Forum and CYPD. Lynn replied that
links were very strong as she sits within CYPD.
Resolved: The Board note the report.

8.0 CHILD POVERTY
B Morgan updated that the Child Poverty Working Group agreed that the £100k would be
used to fund community based assets. To raise aspiration, reduce child poverty and involve
community.
37 schools have been invited to produce an expression of interest. The potential school
project was discussed and it was noted that the letters were due to be sent out before the
school holidays.
Resolved: The Board note the report.

9.0 FOUNDATION YEARS TRUST
Zoe Munby gave a background to the Foundation Years Trust which has been formed to
work to prevent poor children becoming poor adults.
The pre-birth to time is the target age group to ensure/support parents to improve the
outcomes and aspirations of their children.
The project is known as “Birkenhead
Foundations Years Project”. Funding for the project comes from many people and a full
specification is being formalised.
The Foundation Years Trust is a charity with 8 full members and sponsors. Several areas will
be looked at:
A summary of current service
Parenting/child development
Parenting mentoring
Joined Up foundation years services
Develop evidence based model that is transferable within two years
Work underway to develop a suite of indicators.
Zoe noted the wealth of good practice within the LA. J Hassall noted that the LA has
contributed £50,000 for the preparation of an initial business case and work within 30
families.
Councillor Smith commented around the development of School Readiness and the wealth of
data/tools that are already available with professions working with children.
Julie Webster noted that she would be able to signpost Zoe into Public Health to strengthen
links.
Steve Dainty invited Zoe to speak to Primary Heads about the project and the good practice
she has seen within the borough as that recognition is important.

Page 4
4

Cllr Smith reiterated the hard work that is being done in all schools, especially Birkenhead
primaries who achieve some great results with high levels of FSM.
Resolved: The Board note the report.
10.0 5-19 HEALTHY CHILD PROGRAMME
Julie Webster introduced a paper on the commissioning of services to deliver the 5-19
healthy child programme. All services will be reviewed and a clear pathway for services
provision set up. This will also support the integration of the Health Visiting service to the LA
in 2015.
Jane Owens requested an update on the 0-5 and 5-19 healthy child programme for the
Governors newsletter.
Resolved: The Board note the report.

10.0 HELP SURVEY 2013
T Little outlined the results of the 2013 Survey. School engagement rate has reduced
compared to 2012. The key survey findings were discussed.
The key themes from the survey were incorporated into the priorities and projects for the new
CYPP.
Resolved: The Board noted the report and supported the running of the HELP Survey
in 2014. School representatives at the meeting would champion the survey with
schools.

11.0 CYPP PERFORMANCE MONITORING
Further information to be provided.

12.0 ANY OTHER BUSINESS
None.
DATE AND TIME OF 2013/14 MEETINGS
24 September 2013

18 March 2014

19 November 2013

20 May 2014

21 January 2014

15 July 2014

Page 5
5

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6

Agenda Item 5

Page 7

Public!Health!Commissioning!for!Children!0"5!years!in!Wirral!
2013/14!!
First published 13th September 2013
Prepared by
Rosemary Curtis
Interim Lead Commissioner for Children’s Public Health Services,
NHS England Cheshire, Warrington & Wirral Area Team

Background!!
NHS England is responsible for improving health outcomes for young children and
their families through the direct commissioning of public health services for children
0-5 years, specifically the Health Visiting (HV) service and Family Nurse
Partnership (FNP) programmes.
This emphasis on effective programmes of prevention during a child’s early years is
based on evidence of the importance of brain and physical development during
pregnancy and the first two years of life to a wide range of outcomes across the life
course. The delivery of evidence based interventions both universally and through
the targeting of groups at risk of poor outcomes (e.g. the children of teenage
parents) can significantly improves outcomes and reduce costs to services across a
wide range of domains in the medium to long term.
This may be achieved by delivering the Healthy Child Programme (HCP) (DH 2009)
of screening, immunisation and health and development assessment/reviews from
early in pregnancy until the child is 4 years old. Children identified as being at risk
of poor outcomes by the screening/assessment process will receive additional
packages of intervention individually tailored to meet their needs. Health Visitors
and their teams will lead the delivery the HCP, with other services (e.g. Midwives,
GPs, Family Nurses) delivering elements of the programme as part of a seamless
pathway.
The Family Nurse Partnership programme is a licensed intensive preventive
programme with fidelity measures to ensure replication of original research
(developed over 30 years in the US) starting early in pregnancy and continuing until
child is aged 2 years. It benefits children and families who have the poorest
outcomes i.e. mothers with low psychological resources
A structured, intensive home visiting programme delivered by Family Nurses with a
high degree of intensity, depth and skill improves pregnancy outcomes, child health
and development, future school readiness/achievement and parents’ economic
self-sufficiency. The target population is vulnerable first time teenage parents. The
Family Nurses deliver the HCP to their clients until the child is 2 years old.

Page 8

Both of these services have been identified as a high priority for politicians and DH
since 2010; NHS England Area Teams are required to ensure the implementation
of the National Health Visiting Development Plan 2013 -15 and to develop local
Family Nurse Partnership Programmes where local population needs were
identified:
“Develop effective health visiting services, with sufficient
capacity to deliver the new service model set out in the
‘Health Visitor Implementation Plan 2011-2015 – A Call to
Action’ to deliver the Healthy Child Programme, provide
greater support to families and develop local community
capacity in support of children and families, working closely
with Sure Start Children’s Centres and other local services.
The government is committed to developing an expanded
and stronger health visiting service as a key element of
improving support to children and families at the start of
life. This will entail ending the decline in workforce
numbers, beginning to increase posts, workforce numbers
and training capacity in the short term, and increasing the
overall numbers of health visitors by 4,200 by April 2015”
and
“Improve outcomes for the most vulnerable first time
teenage mothers and their children by maintaining existing
delivery Family Nurse Partnerships alongside planning for
an expanded service in appropriate areas”
NHS Operating Framework
2011/12
Local targets for HV workforce expansion have been set for each area, and a
nationally mandated service specification based on LA residency with detailed
reporting requirements is being implemented by providers from April 2013.
The responsibility for commissioning both these programmes will be transferred to
local authorities from April 2015.
Increasing!the!Numbers!of!Health!Visitors!and!FNP!Capacity!!
Health Visiting: local workforce expansion targets were set by NHS NW in 2010
using a baseline of the then current workforce levels and an analysis of population
needs. These trajectories have been updated and revised using the latest
demographic information, CWW targets are:
! 231 WTE qualified health visitors engaged in the delivery of the
Healthy Child Programme in CWW in April 2013, (Wirral 76)
! 257 WTE by March 2014 (Wirral 79.5), and
! 274 WTE by March 2015 (Wirral 84.8).
There appear to be no concerns regarding the ability of Wirral Community Trust
(Wirral’s provider) to recruit qualified health visitors; indeed it appears to be an
employer of choice for newly qualified health visitors. Nationally, the FNP will
expand to provide 16,000 places for young women and their families by 2015.
Wirral currently provides 170 places. There is no separate or ring fenced budget for
FNP. The relatively high costs of delivering the programme make an analysis of the

Page 9

variation in efficiency of the individual programmes and consideration of the
proportion of the overall budget targeted on a specific group a priority.

Transforming!Local!Service!Delivery!!!
Wirral Community NHS Trust delivers the health visiting and FNP services across
the Wirral LA area.
The service has undergone a period of investment and transformation 2009 -13
including being a first wave ‘Early Implementer’ site for the HV Development Plan
in 2011/12. This is reflected in the service development and improvement plan
which indicates almost all components of the service model are being delivered,
with the ‘reach’ of the service in delivering the universal offer consistently well over
90%.
Resources are aligned to population needs and integration/partnership working
with the LA is good at an operational level; the service are currently reviewing their
team structure and skill mix with a view to aligning with the new LA locality
structure based on constituency boundaries, and moving to a service with a greater
proportion of qualified health visitors in the teams.
Wirral has an FNP programme in place since 2009; the team has been expanded
over time from 3.6 wte Family Nurses to 6.6 plus Supervisor. The programme has
been consistently judged to be performing at a ‘good’ level by the National FNP
team; despite a fall in teenage conception rates the team currently reach less than
30% of the eligible population.

Ensuring!the!Safe!Delivery!of!Sustainable!Services!
In order to ensure the equitable funding of services across CWW and the delivery
of a sustainable service to LA commissioning in 2015, a review of population size
and need was undertaken using the model developed by Professor Sarah Cowley
and Dr Christine Bidmead (2009) which is the tool used by NHS NW when carrying
out the initial assessment of need for numbers of health visitors in 2010. This is
based on an analysis of the time taken to deliver the Healthy Child Programme to
specific population groups, resulting in recommendations as to optimum caseload
size for health visitors for populations with differing levels of need. For Wirral this is
a total (including FNP) of 30.95% of the total budget for CWW.
The Area Team are working with Wirral Community Trust to work towards an
alignment of the service costs with the funding allocation.

Page 10

Health!Visiting/FNP!will!contribute!to!improvements!in!the!following!
Public!Health!Outcomes!!
Breastfeeding initiation

Health Improvement

Babies being totally or partially breastfed at 6-8 weeks
Public health functions to be Child development at 2-2½ years
exercised
by
the
NHS
Commissioning Board
Obesity prevalence in Reception year children
Hospital admissions due to injury (0-4 years)
Access to non-cancer screening programmes
MMR immunisation (by age 2 years)

Health Protection

Healthcare public health and Infant mortality
preventing premature mortality
Mean dmft (decayed, missing or filled teeth) in 5 year
old children
Improving
the
determinants of health

wider

Children achieving a good level of development at
Early Years Foundation Stage

Others from Health Outcomes Smoking at time of delivery
framework
Children aged under 16 years living in poverty
Teenage mothers (aged under 18 years)
Teenage conceptions (aged under 18 years)
Low birth weight in term babies
Emergency hospital admissions for lower respiratory
tract infections (0-4 years)
Hospital admissions for gastroenteritis (0-4 years)
Emergency hospital admissions for asthma (0-18
years)
Emergency hospital admissions for diabetes (0-18
years)
Emergency hospital admissions for epilepsy (0-18
years)

Page 11

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12

Agenda Item 6
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD – 24th September 2013
Starting Well in Wirral: A Joint Commissioning Strategy for Children’s Public Health
Services 0 – 5 years, 2013 – 2015

1.0 Background
The foundations for virtually every aspect of human development -physical, intellectual and
emotional- are established in early childhood. These early years, from pre-birth to the age of
5, have a lifelong legacy on many aspects of health and wellbeing. The delivery of evidence
based interventions, both universally and through targeting groups at risk of poor outcomes,
can significantly improve outcomes and reduce costs to services across a wide range of
domains in the medium to long term.
Following changes to the health system architecture, NHS England is now responsible for
commissioning public health services for children 0 – 5 years, specifically the Health Visiting
service and Family Nurse Partnership (FNP), in order to deliver the Healthy Child
Programme (0 – 5 years). This is supported by health and wellbeing services commissioned
by the local authority (Healthy Child Programme 5 – 19) and CCG (Midwifery services,
elective and non elective health services for 0 – 5 years). It is anticipated that responsibility
for commissioning of early years public health services will transfer from NHS England to
local authorities in 2015. During this time NHS England is required to work with partners to
ensure the effective implementation of the National Health Visiting Development Plan 2011 –
2015 and to develop local Family Nurse Partnership Programmes, specifically to increase
capacity, deliver a new model of health visiting and to expand the FNP. This workforce is
fundamental to the delivery of the Healthy Child Programme which includes screening,
immunisation and health and development assessment/reviews from pregnancy until the
child is 4 years old; with additional support, tailored to individual needs, for those identified as
being at risk of poor outcomes.
In recognition of the proposed transfer of overall commissioning responsibilities in 2015 and
to ensure commissioning partners optimise health outcomes for children and their families
NHS England Local Area Team (LAT), with local commissioning partners, is required to
develop a joint commissioning strategy for early years public health services. This strategy
will not replace existing commissioning plans; rather it is aligned with them. The purpose of
this report is to describe the process for the development of a joint commissioning strategy
for children’s public health services 0 – 5 years in Wirral and to consult with the Board on the
jointly agreed vision, priorities and principles.
2.0 Local information from the JSNA
There are approximately 19,000 children (0 - 4 years) living on Wirral (JSNA, 2013) and in
2011 there were 3,802 births. Overall, most of these children will fulfil their aspirations and be
healthy, safe and well educated; have easy access to recreation, sport and leisure; be able
to make a positive contribution to our society; and be well prepared for their working lives.
Most children and young people will live in a decent home and live in a pleasant
environment; near a park or open space, with opportunities to explore and have fun.
However, whilst overall Wirral is a positive place for children and young people to grow up,
some do not fulfil their potential. There are great disparities in Wirral, not least in wealth.
Some areas, mostly in the west of the peninsula, are very affluent; whilst on the east of the
peninsula there are high levels of poverty and deprivation which has an impact upon
children’s lives and development. The challenge is to eliminate disparities in outcomes and
ensure that all young people have the best possible start in life.
Page 1 of 5
Page
13

17,155 (24.4%) Wirral children live in poverty, higher than the proportion for the North West
and England. Significantly, there are higher rates of infant mortality, tooth decay and smoking
and substance misuse in pregnancy and lower levels of uptake for breastfeeding and MMR
vaccination in the most deprived section of the Wirral population.
Wirral also has a higher rate of emergency admissions for unintentional and deliberate
injuries in those aged 0-17, compared to the regional and national average and whilst the
number of children who are obese in Reception has reduced; the number of overweight
children was still higher locally compared to the North West and England in 2010-11.
Historically, Wirral’s teenage conception rate has been higher than both the North West and
England average. Rates for 2011 highlight a marked decrease in Wirral’s teenage conception
rate, however the North West and England rate is not currently available therefore it is not
possible to benchmark regional and national comparators.
In 2012, Wirral had a higher proportion of children assessed as being in need (4%) than the
national average (3.6%). Family dysfunction (38.4%) followed by abuse or neglect (34.4%)
was the highest recorded category of need at initial assessment.
The proportion of children achieving a good level of development at Early Years Foundation
Stage (age 5) in Wirral is lower than regional and England averages.
3.0 Starting Well in Wirral: A Joint Commissioning Strategy for Children’s Public
Health Services 0 – 5 years, 2013 – 2015
Commissioning partners including NHS England, Wirral Council (CYPD and Public Health)
and Wirral CCG, have been working together to identify commissioning priorities for early
years public health services in order to develop a joint commissioning strategy up to the
proposed transfer of overall commissioning responsibility from NHS England to Wirral
Council in 2015. Following a series of meetings, a workshop with representatives from each
commissioning organisation was convened in early September at which a number of shared
priorities were identified and the strategy’s vision and principles agreed; based on a
collaborative understanding of local needs (See Appendix 1). The commissioning roles and
responsibilities for each commissioning partner were also agreed and are described in the
strategy.
Partners agreed that the aim of the strategy is to ensure that all children have the best start
in life through the provision of high quality universal services from pregnancy to age 5, with
additional help for those families who need it through early identification of need and risk. To
fulfil this vision, underpin the strategy and to ensure that a coherent commissioning approach
is embedded across organisations, the following key principles were jointly established.
Commissioners will ensure:
• the maintenance of investment and quality in early years provision, acknowledging
this challenge in a finite fiscal environment.
• appropriate and timely access to services.
• maintained focus on improving access for vulnerable groups.
• joint workforce planning and training across the early years workforce.
• services provide a personalised response, supported by a package of
interventions, which is sensitive and responsive to individual needs.
• the availability of intelligence on key priorities is enhanced, in order to inform
commissioning.
• that there is shared learning across the early years system.

Page 2 14
of 5
Page

A review of needs in relation to health outcomes, benchmarked against national and regional
positions identified a number of agreed areas of priority for improvement across the early
years life course (pre conception, antenatal, postnatal and early years). The following
priorities aim to maximise health outcomes for children aged 0 – 5 years:
1. Maintenance of quality antenatal preparation (e.g. antenatal education classes).
2. A focus on maternal lifestyle support in pregnancy and early years.
3. Improve maternal mental health.
4. Partnership action to increase breastfeeding, refreshing the Wirral strategy.
5. Reduce accidents in the early years.
Underpinning these priorities is recognition of the necessity for cross cutting, whole system
action to address child poverty, domestic violence and to ensure effective safeguarding
processes. The strategy is intended to complement and enhance partnership progress to
address these complex issues.
These priorities resonate with, and contribute to, the outcomes in the Public Health
Outcomes Framework, the NHS Operating Framework and the Every Child Matters
Outcomes.
4.0 Proposed timetable and next steps
A final version of the Strategy will be completed by the end of October 2013, following
consultation with key stakeholder groups including the Health and Wellbeing Board, the
Wirral CCG Operational Group and Wirral’s Children’s Quality, Innovation, productivity and
Prevention (QIPP) Group.
It is proposed that a Joint Early Years Strategy Group is established to oversee the ongoing
implementation and monitoring of the Strategy, this should be considered in the context of a
locally evolving children’s governance structure.
5.0 Recommendations
The Children’s Trust Board is asked to:
• Note and support the development of the strategy.
• To comment on the initial strategy vision, priorities, principles and consultation
process.
• To advise on the proposed governance arrangements for this strategy.
Report Author: Julie Webster, Head of Public Health (juliewebster@wirral.gov.uk)
Contact: 0151 666 5142

Page 3 of 5
Page
15

APPENDIX 1
Starting Well in Wirral at a glance: a joint commissioning strategy 2013 - 2015
Vision:
Outcome:

All children have the best start in life through the provision of high quality universal services from pregnancy to age 5, with additional
help for those families who need it through early identification of need and risk.
Children are achieving a good level of development at age 5

CHALLENGES

Page 16

There are higher rates of
infant mortality, tooth
decay and smoking and
substance
misuse
in
pregnancy and lower
levels of uptake for
breastfeeding and MMR
vaccination in the most
deprived section of the
Wirral population.
A higher proportion of
children assessed as
being in need (4%) than
the national average
(3.6%).
Family
dysfunction
(38.4%)
followed by abuse or
neglect (34.4%) was the
highest
recorded
category of need at
initial assessment.

The
proportion
of
children achieving a
good
level
of
development at Early
Years Foundation Stage

PRINCIPLES

PRIORITIES

KEY OUTCOMES

Maintenance
of
investment and quality in
early
years
provision,
acknowledging the finite
fiscal environment.

PRIORITY 1
Maintenance
of
quality
antenatal preparation

Decreased infant mortality
Decreased number of LBW babies
Increase breastfeeding at initiation
Decreased smoking prevalence at
delivery

Appropriate and
access to services.

PRIORITY 2
Focus on maternal lifestyle
support in pregnancy and
early years.

Decreased infant mortality
Decreased smoking prevalence at
delivery
Decreased maternal obesity at
delivery

PRIORITY 3
Improve maternal
health.

Increased maternal wellbeing

Maintained
focus
improving
access
vulnerable groups.

timely

on
for

Joint workforce planning
and training across the
early years workforce.
Personalised
services,
supported by a package
of interventions, which are
sensitive and responsive to
individual needs.
Enhanced intelligence on
key priorities to inform
commissioning.
Shared learning across the
early years system.

mental

PRIORITY 4
Partnership action to increase
breastfeeding, refreshing the
Wirral strategy.

Increased breastfeeding at initiation
and 6 – 8 weeks.
Decreased obesity at 2.5 years and
Reception.

PRIORITY 5
Reduce accidents in the early
years.

Reduced hospital admissions caused
by unintentional and deliberate
injuries in 0 – 4 years.

Page 4 of 5

Multi sector action to address child poverty, domestic violence and effective safeguarding

Children
are
achievin
ga
good
level of
develop
ment at
age 5

Page 17

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18

Agenda Item 7
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD – 24th SEPTEMBER 2013
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AND BOARD
MEMBERSHIP ANNUAL REVIEW

1.0 Background
A Memorandum of Understanding was developed for Wirral Children’s Trust in June 2009 to
ensure that the structure and governance arrangements provide an effective and transparent
framework and clarity of roles and responsibilities for partner organisations. The original
memorandum was developed using Wirral Council Partnership Governance Framework,
Audit Commission Children’s Trusts tools and good practice in other areas. As defined in the
memorandum the membership of the board and the memorandum itself are reviewed on an
annual basis.

2.0 Annual Review of the Memorandum of Understanding
Wirral Children’s Trust together with the Wirral Safeguarding Children Board provides a clear
framework for partnership working for the benefit of Wirral’s children, young people and
families.
Positive joint working has progressed with the Health and Wellbeing Board (HWBB)
discussions have been held regarding joint future development to ensure the optimisation of
the integration of health and children’s services and no duplication between the two
structures.
The memorandum has been reviewed in light of national guidance and local changes. The
protocol between the Trust and the Local Safeguarding Children Board remains embedded
within the memorandum. This protocol has been reviewed by WSCB Manager and will be
presented to the WSCB for review. The refreshed memorandum is now presented for
endorsement by the board.

3.0 Annual Review of the Membership of Wirral Children’s Trust Board
The membership of the Board is formally reviewed on an annual basis to ensure it remains
relevant in line with local and national changes. In 2012-13 a number of changes of
personnel have been approved as a result of organisational changes and restructures. As a
result the membership of the board has been reviewed as requiring no necessary further
change at this time.
As part of the development of the new Children and Young People’s Plan 2013-16
the Children’s Trust Executive and Strategy Groups reviewed and re-organised the structure
and function of the Children’s Trust sub-groups to ensure the foundations are in place to
effectively deliver the new CYPP.
4.0 Recommendations:
4.1 That Wirral Children’s Trust Board endorses the refreshed memorandum.

Page 19

4.2 That Wirral Children’s Trust Board agree the membership of the board and makes
proposals if any additional further changes are deemed necessary.

Report Author:
Nancy Clarkson
Senior Manager CYPD Infrastructure

Contact:
Phone: 6664329
Email: nancyclarkson@wirral.gov.uk

Appendices:
Appendix 1 Wirral Children’s Trust Memorandum of Understanding

Page 20

Wirral Children’s Trust

Memorandum of Understanding
September 2013
DRAFT

Version 5
September 2013

Page 21

Wirral Children’s Trust Memorandum of Understanding
Contents
Foreword
1.0
2.0
3.0
4.0
5.0
6.0
7.0
8.0
9.0
10.0
11.0

12.0
13.0
14.0
15.0
16.0
17.0
18.0
19.0

Introduction
Statement of Commitment
Aims of Wirral Children’s Trust
Partnership Principles
Governance and Accountability Arrangements
Decision Making
Challenge Process
Partner Roles and Responsibilities
The Scope of Involvement
The Role of the Director of Children’s Services & Lead Member
Protocol between WCT and the Wirral Safeguarding Children Board
11.1
Roles
11.2
WSCB Responsibilities
11.3
Children’s Trust Responsibilities
11.4
Operational Arrangements
11.5
Accountability
Leadership
Commissioning
Performance Management
Information Sharing
Risk Assessment
Equalities and Inclusion
Dispute and Conflict Resolution
Review of the Memorandum of Understanding
Figure 1 The Structure of Wirral Children’s Trust

1
1
1
1
2
2
3
3
3
4
4
4
5
6
6
6
6
7
7
7
7
7
8
8
9

20.0

Wirral Children’s Trust Board
20.1
Role of Wirral Children’s Trust Board
20.2
Terms of Reference
20.3
Membership
20.4
Meeting Arrangements

10
10
10
10
11

21.0

Wirral Children’s Trust Executive
21.1
Role of Children’s Trust Executive
21.2
Terms of Reference
21.3
Membership
21.4
Meeting Arrangements

12
12
12
12
12

22.0

Strategy Groups
22.1
Role of Strategy Groups
22.2
Terms of Reference
22.3
Membership
22.4
Meeting Arrangements

13
13
13
13
13

23.0

Wirral Children’s Trust Support

14

Page 22

Foreword
Children and young people are society’s future and with them rest our hopes and aspirations.
Supporting their interests and welfare is paramount. Through Wirral Children’s Trust we will secure
an active partnership of services, parents and carers, working together to deliver the best
outcomes for all our children and young people and thus enabling them to fulfil their potential.
The purpose of this Memorandum of Understanding is to ensure that the structure and governance
arrangements of Wirral Children’s Trust provide an effective and transparent framework and clarity
of roles and responsibilities and that effective use is made of public resources for the benefit of
children and young people.

Councillor Tony Smith
Lead Member for Children’s Services

Julia Hassall
Director of Children’s Services

Page 23

Wirral Children’s Trust Memorandum of Understanding
1.0

Introduction

1.1

Children’s Trusts are local partnership arrangements to improve children’s well-being.
There is a requirement for each Local Authority to have a Children’s Trust Board which
must include representatives of ‘relevant partners’. They are underpinned by a ‘duty to cooperate’ in Section 10 of the Children Act 2004. This Memorandum establishes Wirral
Children’s Trust (WCT) arrangements for governance, integrated working, joint planning
and commissioning, and accountabilities in order to deliver improved outcomes for Wirral’s
children and young people.

2.0

Statement of Commitment

2.1

The member organisations of WCT are committed to working together at every level to
improve the quality of life and wellbeing of all children and young people in Wirral.

3.0

Aims of Wirral Children’s Trust

3.1

“Our vision is to enable Wirral’s children, young people and families to access services
quickly in order to be secure, healthy, have fun and achieve their full potential.”

3.2

The aim of WCT is to work across professional and agency boundaries to make a
difference to the experience and life chances of children, young people and their families.
The trust will agree priorities and actions for children’s services ensuring safeguarding
underpins all activity and provide a framework for the effective operation of local
arrangements. The framework will support a focus on preventative and early intervention
services and ensure service providers understand what is expected of them. Monitoring of
performance will inform future planning and commissioning, ensuring clear strategic
direction and providing value for money.

4.0

Partnership Principles

4.1

The members agree to work together actively to achieve the aims of WCT, on the basis of:
• visible commitment and ‘ownership’ by the various member organisations and individual
representatives;
• mutual trust and respect;
• openness and transparency;
• effective communication and accountability;
• shared ownership of resources where appropriate;
• combined expertise;
• creative and innovative solutions to problems;
• identification and sharing of best practice, based on mutual learning;
• removal of barriers to equality of access and opportunity;
• clear purpose, clarity of expectations and agreed targets for action;
• effective decision-making;
• shared mechanisms for risk management, monitoring, evaluation, reviewing and
reporting on performance, progress and success;
• allowing each constituent member unobstructed access to the audit records of the
partnership, on request.

Page 24

1

5.0

Governance and Accountability Arrangements

5.1

The governance and accountability arrangements set out in this document put into
operation the duty to cooperate as set out in Section 10 of the Children Act 2004.

5.2

This applies to all services provided or commissioned by WCT that support children and
young people, aged 0 to 19, and specific groups of young people up to age 25.

5.3

WCT requires each partner agency to retain full responsibility for its statutory duties and
functions at all times and allows for these duties and functions to be carried out through a
system of joint planning and commissioning. This supplements existing organisational
arrangements and provides additional robust accountabilities outside of existing partner
agency arrangements.

5.4

The Board will take responsibility for setting the strategic direction for services to children,
young people and their families. This includes setting priorities, joint planning and
commissioning decisions, the alignment of resources at strategic level and agreeing service
models based on service performance and agreed service specifications.

5.5

Through the Children and Young People’s Plan (CYPP), the Board will act as the single
coordination body for all children’s services planning and commissioning arrangements and
will be the focus for facilitating joint working, leading to the integration of multi agency
services for children and young people and their families.

5.6

The Board will be responsible and accountable for the performance and commissioning
decisions made by all other planning and commissioning groups in children’s services.

5.7

The Board will be accountable to the Wirral Safeguarding Children Board (WSCB) for the
actions it takes in ensuring that all children and young people in Wirral are adequately
safeguarded.

5.8

The Board is committed to working with the new Health and Wellbeing Board. Both Boards
support an approach of alignment of activity to ensure effective partnership working.

5.9

WCT assumes all partners accept collective responsibility and accountability for all
decisions made by the Board. However, within this collective responsibility and decisionmaking process it is recognised there are different levels of accountability and risk for
individual agencies and organisations.

6.0

Decision Making

6.1

Each partner agency accepts collective responsibility for all decisions made by the Board.
All decisions will be transparent and informed by open debate, advice, performance
reporting and analysis, best practice, risk assessment and option appraisal.

6.2

Decision making will be by consensus, wherever possible, but if a consensus cannot be
reached, decisions will be taken on a simple majority of those present and voting will be by
a show of hands. In the event of a tied vote, the person chairing the meeting may exercise
a second or casting vote.

6.3

The Children’s Trust Executive (CTE) and the multi-agency Strategy Groups will be
responsible for providing advice to the Board to support the decision-making processes.

Page 25

2

7.0

Challenge process

7.1

In exercising collective responsibility for all decisions made by the Board each partner
agency will be open to challenge and scrutiny through the formal processes of the
accountable body (the Council) and of the other agencies.

7.2

Progress on the delivery of the Children and Young Peoples Plan (CYPP) will be
performance managed by the Board and an annual review will be published which is open
to challenge by any interested party.

8.0

Partner Roles and Responsibilities

8.1

The Local Authority (Council) is responsible for leading WCT and the Council in the
improvement of outcomes for all children and young people. In this respect the Council is
the accountable body for WCT. The Council is responsible for the development and
implementation of the CYPP as the single agreement between the partnership on priorities
and actions for children and young people.

8.2

National Health Service organisations are responsible for ensuring that health provision
meets the identified needs of children, young people and their families on behalf of WCT.
Partner health organisations are responsible for ensuring health provision is aligned to the
priorities agreed in the CYPP, and for the commissioning of health services on behalf of
WCT.

8.3

Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service are responsible for ensuring that their strategic
planning encompasses the WCT vision and the priorities in the CYPP.

8.4

The Youth Offending Service (YOS), the police and probation service work together within
the criminal justice system. They have roles in prevention of offending and re-offending,
identification of suitable intervention programmes and identifying children and young people
at risk of harm or other poor outcomes. The Police are responsible for ensuring that the
Local Policing Plan is consistent with the WCT vision and the priorities in the CYPP.

8.5

The Voluntary Community and Faith Sector (VCF) has a significant expertise in the
delivery of services and in engaging children and families in identifying needs, innovative
service models and commissioning priorities. VCF Sector representation is responsible for
informing WCT on these areas of expertise and for ensuring the sector has a voice in
identifying priorities and actions in the CYPP.

8.6

Schools, Academies, Sixth Form and Further Education Colleges, School Governor and
School Forum representatives are responsible for ensuring the sector informs and
influences priority setting in the CYPP and advise the WCT on engagement with schools in
Wirral.

8.7

Job Centre Plus representatives are responsible for ensuring their organisation inform,
influence and advise the Board.

9.0

The Scope of Involvement

9.1

WCT Board will demonstrate clear links to other thematic partnerships through the Local
Strategic Partnership (LSP) to ensure that strategies are not fragmented and that different
services share priorities and thinking. WCT will inform and influence the work of the LSP
with regards to children, young people and families.

9.2

The views of children and young people are at the centre of strategic planning and service
design. WCT Board will ensure ongoing high quality consultation with children, young

Page 26

3

people and their families is undertaken to empower and engage the wider community.
Specific consultation will be carried out during the preparation of the CYPP.

10.0

Role of the Director of Children’s Services and Lead Member

10.1

The Director of Children’s Services (DCS) has professional responsibility for children’s
services, including operational matters; the LMCS has political responsibility for children’s
services. Together with the Chief Executive and Leader the DCS and LMCS have a key
leadership role both within the local authority and working with other local agencies to
improve outcomes for children and young people.

10.2

The DCS has professional responsibility for the leadership, strategy and effectiveness of
local authority children’s services including services which address the needs of all children
and young people, including the most disadvantaged and vulnerable, and their families and
carers. In discharging these responsibilities, the DCS will work closely with other local
partners to improve the outcomes and well-being of children and young people.

10.3

The LMCS, as a member of the Council Executive, has political responsibility for the
leadership, strategy and effectiveness of local authority children’s services. The LMCS is
also democratically accountable to local communities and has a key role in defining the
local vision and setting political priorities for children’s services within the broader political
context of the Council.

10.4

The DCS and LMCS roles provide a clear and unambiguous line of political and
professional accountability for children’s well-being. Both work to drive forward the
development of a dynamic partnership to integrate and transform services.

11.0

Protocol between Wirral Children’s Trust and the Wirral Safeguarding
Children Board

11.1

Roles

11.1.1 Wirral Children’s Trust (WCT) and Wirral Safeguarding Children Board (WSCB) have
important but distinctive roles in keeping children safe. It is not a hierarchical relationship.
WCT is accountable for overseeing the delivery of the CYPP. In progressing this plan the
Trust is accountable for ensuring services deliver improved outcomes for children and
young people.
11.1.2 WSCB is responsible for challenging each relevant partner of WCT, through the WCT
Board, on their success in ensuring that children and young people are kept safe in the
Borough.
11.1.3 In order to ensure the complementary roles of the two bodies and the necessary
challenge the two bodies are chaired by different people.
11.1.4 The Director of Children’s Services (DCS) and the Lead Member for Children’s Services
have central roles. The DCS has lead responsibility for improving outcomes for children in
the Borough. The Lead Member is politically accountable for ensuring:
• the Local Authority (LA) fulfils its legal responsibilities for safeguarding and promoting
the welfare of children and young people;
• effective quality assurance systems for safeguarding are in place and functioning
effectively across service areas and levels of need;
• the political leadership is provided for the effective co-ordination of work with other
relevant agencies with safeguarding responsibilities.

Page 27

4

11.1.5 The DCS is a member of both WCT and WSCB. The DCS will be held to account by the
LA Chief Executive for the effective working of the WSCB. The Lead Member is Chair of
WCT and is a ‘participant observer’ of WSCB as described by “Statutory Guidance on the
Roles and Responsibilities of the Director of Children’s Services and the Lead Member for
Children’s Services” (2012).
11.1.6 The LA Chief Executive and Council Leader also have critical roles to play. The Chief
Executive must ensure that the DCS is fulfilling managerial responsibilities for
safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children and young people; in particular the
DCS will be held to account for the effective working of the WSCB.
11.1.7 The wider public has an important role to play: keeping children safe is everyone’s
responsibility. WCT has actively sought the views of the local community and consulted
children, young people and their families when drawing up the CYPP.
11.1.8 WSCB arrangements are open to wider public scrutiny through the appointment to the
WSCB of lay members drawn from the local community. Lay members operate as full
members of the WSCB and their wider roles are to help to make links between the WSCB
and community groups, to support stronger public engagement in local child safety issues
and to improve public understanding of the WSCB’s child protection work.
11.2

WSCB Responsibilities

11.2.1 The WSCB is the decision making body for multi-agency safeguarding activity within
Wirral. It is a statutory partnership and its work is directed by statutory guidance which
dictates its functions. The DCS has a statutory responsibility for ensuring that an effective
Safeguarding Children Board is in place for the local area.
11.2.2 The work of the WSCB falls into three broad areas, all of which aim to safeguard children
and promote their welfare by:
• Protecting children from maltreatment;
• Preventing impairment of children’s health or development;
• Ensuring that children grow up in circumstances consistent with the provision of safe
and effective care.
11.2.3 The WSCB is well positioned through its various quality assurance processes to advise,
and where appropriate, challenge WCT arrangements. For example, learning from
Serious Case Reviews, Child Death Overview Panels, Section 11 self assessments and
multi-agency critical incident reviews. This includes oversight of the commissioning
arrangements for safeguarding by ensuring there is sufficient capacity to meet the needs
of children in Wirral and ensuring that planned service changes have the child at the
centre.
11.2.4 The WSCB publishes an Annual Report on the effectiveness of arrangements locally, and
the contribution and activities of each local partner for keeping children safe. In addition
the Council has agreed a Safeguarding Reference Group, chaired by the leader of the
Council, to oversee the annual reports from both the WSCB and the Safeguarding Adults
Partnership Board (non-statutory) to ensure there is an appraisal of the safeguarding
arrangements organised by Council services.
11.2.5 The WSCB Independent Chair, who is also a member of the WCT will present regular
safeguarding updates to the WCT which will include performance information, progress
against priorities identified in the WSCB Annual Report and recommendations from the
monitoring and evaluation of safeguarding arrangements during the year.

Page 28

5

11.3

Children’s Trust Responsibilities

11.3.1 WCT is the local partnership that brings together organisations responsible for children’s
services. It is a thematic group of the Local Strategic Partnership (LSP).
11.3.2 WCT takes responsibility for developing and publishing a Children and Young People’s
Plan (CYPP). The plan sets out how WCT partners co-operate to improve the well-being
of children in the local area and will monitor how partners act in accordance with the plan.
11.3.3 WCT must ensure the work of all the strategy groups takes into account the safeguarding
needs of children in the development of the CYPP.
11.3.4 WCT, as part of its CYPP Annual Review, will make an assessment of the effectiveness of
partnership arrangements in supporting the best possible standards for safeguarding
children. In its response WCT will ensure that any refresh to the plan include priorities
identified by the WSCB.
11.3.5 WCT will seek approval from WSCB regarding any proposed commissioning
arrangements which are linked to the factors which impact on safeguarding children,
including compromised parenting.
11.4

Operational Arrangements

11.4.1 The WSCB will report to the CT each quarter on the arrangements for local safeguarding
by monitoring and scrutinising activity and offer robust challenge to partners and the Trust
on its activity. It will provide an annual report setting out the assessment of local
safeguarding and its findings and make recommendations for improvement. The WSCB
will also reflect within the annual report priorities for commissioning of safeguarding
activity.
11.4.2 Once agreed by WCT Board and the WSCB, this protocol will be embedded in Wirral
Children’s Trust Memorandum of Understanding and will be reviewed annually with the
Memorandum.
11.5

Accountability

11.5.1 The WSCB will request evidence from WCT as to its rigour in commissioning or
developing services that safeguard children and young people. WSCB will call member
organisations of the Children’s Trust to account should it have evidence that children are
not being adequately safeguarded by one or more relevant partners. The resolution will
require a formal response/action from WCT within a specific timeframe which will be
agreed mutually.

12.0

Leadership

12.1

Each Board member will act on behalf of their organisation as an ambassador for children’s
services locally, regionally and nationally. Board members will take responsibility for
ensuring the agreed actions are carried out and their agency/sector is fully informed about
the work of WCT and engaged in the delivery of the CYPP.

13.0

Commissioning

Page 29

6

13.1

The Board, supported by the Joint Commissioning Group, will be responsible for the
identification of need and the setting of priorities to support the development of integrated
multi-agency services for all children, young people and their families. Commissioners will
ensure there is a comprehensive, up-to-date analysis of children and young people’s needs
upon which informed decisions on the design and commissioning of services can be based.
They will coordinate the implementation of the partnership’s preventative framework by
identifying shifts in activity and resource allocation that will enable the development of
planned, targeted interventions.

13.2

All planning and commissioning decision making will be informed by:
•
•
•
•

needs analysis
prevention priorities
performance
risk analysis

13.3

The Board will carry out an annual review of commissioning and evaluate how outcomes
and services have been improved through the alignment and pooling of resources and
jointly agreed priorities.

14.0

Performance Management

14.1

The Board will review progress in achieving improved outcomes for all children on a regular
basis. Management information reports will inform the Board of the progress being made in
achieving the key targets set out in the CYPP and relevant areas of Wirral Council’s
Corporate Plan. The specific responsibility for the performance management of outcomes
will be held by the Children’s Trust Executive (CTE).

15.0

Information Sharing

15.1

The Board will ensure that information sharing protocols are designed to enable appropriate
data sharing between organisations and that intelligence gathering for effective needs
analysis can be carried out on a continuous basis.

16.0

Risk Assessment

16.1

Risks associated with the delivery of the CYPP will be managed by the CTE and escalated
to the Board for formal assessment when necessary.

17.0

Equalities and Inclusion

17.1

The Children’s Trust will operate on the basis of principles that actively value the benefits of
diversity and ensure fair treatment and equality of opportunity.

17.2

On an annual basis an equalities impact assessment will be carried out through the CTE
alongside the review of the CYPP.

18.0

Dispute and Conflict Resolution

18.1

Members of the partnership:

•

Must not use their position improperly, confer on, or secure for themselves or any other
person, an advantage or disadvantage.

Page 30

7

•
•

Must not unduly influence any person in the paid employment of any of the partner
agencies.
Must ensure that activities are not undertaken for political purposes.

18.2

Issues of conflict within the partnership will be resolved initially by informal discussion. If
this is not successful the issue will be referred to the Chief Executive of each agency who
will meet to attempt to resolve the issue. If the issue is still not resolved appropriate
alternative dispute resolution (ADR) will be considered.

19.0

Review of the Memorandum of Understanding

19.1

This Memorandum of Understanding will be reviewed on an annual basis.

Page 31

8

Figure 1: The Structure of Wirral Children’s Trust

Page 32

9

20.0

Wirral Children’s Trust Board

20.1

Role of Wirral Children’s Trust Board

21.1.1 The Boards role is to provide leadership for the Children’s Trust within a framework of
effective controls. Each Board member will act as an ambassador for children’s services
locally, regionally and nationally.
20.2

Terms of Reference

20.2.1 Board members will:
• Co-ordinate services for children and young people.
• Oversee the preparation, agreement, monitoring and review of the Children and Young
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

20.3

People’s Plan to meet both statutory requirements and local need.
Ensure that children, young people, their families and carers are able to contribute
effectively to the design and delivery of services for them.
Determine the integrated strategies required to improve the outcomes for children’s
well-being with robust performance monitoring with regard to outcomes and impact.
Agree joint commissioning strategies and be responsible for pooled budget
arrangements.
Create a shared culture and vision amongst partners.
Identify and celebrate best practice.
Ensure that there is appropriate challenge where partnership working becomes
ineffective.
Ensure that their agency/sector is fully informed about the work of the Board and
engaged in the delivery of the CYPP.
Oversee the arrangements for the sharing of information about children and young
people.
Maintain a strategic link to the Wirral Safeguarding Children’s Board.
Demonstrate clear links to other thematic partnerships through the Local Strategic
Partnership (LSP).
Oversee inspection arrangements and support agencies to meet the requirements of
the Ofsted Children’s Services Inspection regime.
Oversee the development of future governance arrangements and approve such
arrangements.

Membership

20.3.1 Chair:

Lead Member for Children’s Services

20.3.2 Deputy:

To be appointed by the board

20.3.3 All partners under a statutory duty to cooperate will be represented and other persons or
bodies the CT board consider appropriate. Attendees to be nominated by their constituent
body.
20.3.4 The membership will include representatives from the following:
• Elected members
• Wirral Council
• Wirral National Health Service organisations
• Merseyside Police
• Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service
• Merseyside Probation Service

Page 33

10

• Job Centre Plus
• The Voluntary, Community and Faith Sector
• Primary and Secondary (including Special) Schools, Sixth Form and FE Colleges and

School and Governor Forum representatives
20.3.5 The membership will be reviewed on an annual basis.
20.4

Meeting Arrangements

20.4.1 The Children’s Trust Board will meet bi-monthly.

Page 34

11

21.0

Wirral Children’s Trust Executive

21.1

Role of the Children’s Trust Executive

21.1.1 The CTE will operate as an executive of the WCT Board. Whilst the strategic leadership,
accountability and agreement reside with the Board, the CTE works to support the Board
through a process of delegated and devolved decision making powers. All proposals
concerning key strategic developments will be presented to WCT Board for final approval.
21.2

Terms of Reference

21.2.1 Executive members will take responsibility for:
• Delivering the identified needs of Wirral children and young people in terms of the five
outcomes in the Children Act 2004.
• Developing the strategies required to improve the outcomes for children’s well-being.
• The preparation and annual review of the Children and Young People’s Plan.
• Identifying best practice and proposing joint commissioning of services and identifying
shared resources.
• Annual review of joint commissioning arrangements.
• Implementing service improvement priorities.
• Establishing the evidence base behind development proposals.
• Ensuring that agreed actions are carried out.
• Ensuring that the cross agency strategy groups are fully informed about the work of
WCT and are engaged in the delivery of the CYPP.
• Disseminating a shared culture and vision amongst partners in the working groups.
• Performance management.
• Preparing for and evaluating practice to inform inspection arrangements.
21.3

Membership

21.3.1 Chair:

Director of Children’s Services

21.3.2 Deputy:

To be nominated by the Executive

21.3.3 The membership includes the Strategy Lead for each multi-agency strategy group and
invited representatives.
21.4

Meeting Arrangements

21.4.1The CTE will meet bi-monthly.

Page 35

12

22.0

Strategy Groups

22.1

Role of the Strategy Groups

22.1.1 The multi-agency strategy groups (SG) are formed to ensure delivery of specific outcome
areas for children and young people. They are responsible for delivering the CYPP. They
are accountable to WCT Board and the CTE.
22.2

Terms of Reference

22.2.1 The Strategy Groups are responsible for:
• The monitoring and reporting on progress.
• Issues regarding their respective performance indicators, CYPP priorities, allocated
tasks groups and any other locally based targets agreed by the partnership.
• Receiving information from and responding to requests from other groups and
stakeholders.
• Making quarterly performance progress reports highlighting areas of poor performance,
issues and risk.
• Developing opportunities for multi-agency involvement and networking to share best
practice.
• Providing support and information to other groups within the Trust.
• Maintaining effective arrangements to consult with children, young people, families and
carers, act on the results of the consultation and provide feedback.
22.3

Membership

22.3.1 Chair: Outcome area Strategy Lead / Agreed Children’s Trust Board Member
22.3.2 Multi-agency representation related to each outcome area, including family
representation.
22.4

Meeting Arrangements

22.4.1 To be agreed by each group.

Page 36

13

23.0

Wirral Children’s Trust Support

23.1

The Children’s Services Department Universal Services Branch will oversee the provision
of the following key functions to WCT Board and the CTE:
• Agenda.
• Minutes.
• Performance management reporting arrangements.
• Seek appropriate contributions from partners to support the CT governance framework.
• If required, send representation to advise groups in terms of processes relating to
governance reporting and standard agenda items.

Page 37

14

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 38

Agenda Item 8
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD – 24TH SEPTEMBER 2013
WIRRAL COUNCIL BUDGET OPTIONS

1.0 Background
On the 16h of September 2013 Wirral Council published a series of Chief Executive Budget
Options, proposals that have been drawn up to help the Council prioritise services within
budget. For financial year 2014-15 the budget gap is £27.5 million. These options follow the
publication in November 2012 of a previous consultation regarding council services and
budget which was reviewed by the Children’s Trust Board on the 27th of November 2012.

2.0 The Budget Options Papers
The Budget Options Papers put forward where savings might be found for consideration by
staff, Councillors, partners, and the public. There are three papers:
• Families and Wellbeing
• Regeneration and Environment
• Transformation and Resources
The Families and Wellbeing Budget Options summary document is included for the Board as
Appendix 1. In addition further detail regarding each of the individual options outlined in the
summary papers has been published. Full detail of the proposals is available on the
Council’s website:
http://www.wirral.gov.uk/my-services/council-and-democracy/what-really-matters

3.0 The Consultation
The consultation on the budget options opened on the 16th of September and closes on
December 6th. The feedback will be collated in order to assist the Council to reach final
decisions.

4.0 Recommendations:
4.1 That Wirral Children’s Trust Board provides its views on the proposals published in the
Budget Options Papers.

Report Author:
Nancy Clarkson
Senior Manager CYPD Infrastructure

Contact:
Phone: 6664329
Email: nancyclarkson@wirral.gov.uk

Appendices:
Appendix 1 Budget Options: Summary Document for Families and Wellbeing

Page 39

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 40

Budget Options:
Summary Document for
Families & Wellbeing

If you care about tomorrow,
you need to tell us today.

Page 41

Message from the Chief Executive

Dear Resident
I’m sure you will be aware that Councils across the country are facing major cuts in funding.
The Government is continuing to reduce the amount of money Councils are able to spend on services.
These cuts are falling more and more on deprived, northern areas such as Wirral. While we fiercely
believe the way these cuts are being allocated is both disproportionate and unfair, we have no choice
but to implement them.
These are tough times - for our staff, Councillors, and most importantly the people who we serve. We
have more extremely tough decisions to make over the coming months. To refuse to make the savings
demanded of us would mean setting an illegal budget, which would ultimately result in the wholesale
closure of services - putting thousands of vulnerable people at very real risk. Our duty as public servants
is to do all we can to use the limited resources we have left in the most effective way possible to continue
to ensure the services you rely on most remain available in some form. The only way we can do this is in
partnership with you. We need your input and your views.
We started this process last year, and agreed savings of almost £50 million. This was a good start, and
we were able, thankfully, to make most of these savings through so-called ‘back office’ costs, including
efficiencies in areas such as management administration, marketing, agency costs, car mileage and
phone bills. We also made significant progress in removing the legacy of bad financial management at
this Council – we have made sure that going forward Council budgets are robust and are based on
sound evidence, and the mistakes of the past are not repeated.
However, this year, we need to make further savings and are again asking for your help. Once again, we
tried to come up with options which would mitigate, as much as possible, the impact of these budget
cuts on our most vulnerable residents. Within this document you will find both an explanation of the
Council budget, plus a series of principles which have been used to develop these options.
I put forward to you my options for where savings might be found, and I am asking all of you - residents,
partners, and staff - to consider how we can spend less while minimising the impact on our poorest and
most vulnerable residents. I understand how difficult it may be to contemplate some of these options,
but the only responsible thing for us to do is to deal with the financial challenges we face.
Last year, we knew we had to save £109 million over the next three years – that figure has actually
grown due to further announcements by the Government. This coming financial year, our budget gap is
£27.5 million. We have found efficiency savings which add up to around £7 million, which do not impact
on services. We are also assuming a below inflation rise in Council Tax which would generate £2 million.
This means, of the budget options which have been put forward, only around £17.5 million need to be
agreed – which I hope demonstrates that there is real choice over where savings can be found.
My pledge to you is that I will consult with staff, residents, community, voluntary and faith groups and
businesses so that we can make these tough decisions together. I urge you to work with us and let us
have your views.
Graham Burgess,
Chief Executive.

Page 42

Message from Strategic Director, Clare Fish

The challenges we are facing, both in a financial and demographic sense, mean that we
must change, we must adapt, and we must innovate to ensure that we continue to deliver
services which are relevant to those who need them.
We have an ageing population, and more vulnerable adults needing our help. We have more and more
children needing our support, and we have growing levels of child poverty. At the same time, the
aspirations of the people we work with are, quite rightly, rising – as are their expectations of us.
However, we have less money than ever to support them. Our challenges are clear – they are significant,
but not insurmountable.
A priority is to continue to fulfil our duties to safeguard those who are most vulnerable whilst targeting
the resources we have to ensure we achieve maximum value for the Wirral pound. We will continually
seek innovative solutions to make certain the financial constraints being placed on the Council do not
impact on our residents’ ability to live full lives and achieve their aspirations.
To do this we must adopt a new way of thinking – working with and supporting individuals and
communities to become more resilient, thereby reducing dependency and encouraging greater
independence. This will require residents, people using our services and also our workforce to think and
work differently.
It will also mean we will work much more closely with partners looking at how we can deliver services
better together. We will be looking for whether other organisations are better placed to deliver services
on our behalf.
We will shift focus, proactively involving service users in all aspects of how services are designed,
delivered and reviewed. The money we spend will be scrutinised to ensure we commit public resources
only where it will have most impact and deliver the most positive outcomes.
We recognise that none of these changes can happen overnight. We have a lot of work to do to ‘get the
basics right’ and to bring our finances into line. We have already made a good start – and we will
continue to work hard to make sure we get there.
The savings which are being proposed this year are difficult. They impact on you, as a resident, and they
impact on our staff. They are tough choices, but necessary ones, and if we are to be successful we
need to work together – staff, residents, partners and Councillors. I therefore strongly urge you to let us
have your views.

Clare Fish,
Strategic Director Families & Wellbeing

Page 43

Your Budget Explained

The Council, like a lot of public sector agencies and big organisations, has an extremely
complicated budget. We’ve tried to simplify it on this page, to explain to you why we need to
make savings and where our £27.5 million budget gap has come from.

WHERE OUR MONEY COMES FROM (2014/15):

£111 million
£146.5 million
£19 million

Settlement
Income
Grants

£52 million

Reimbursements
Tax and Rates

£423 million

Firstly, it’s important to be clear about where the money Wirral Council spends actually comes from.
As you’ll see from the chart – the vast majority of the money comes from the Government, in the form
of ‘Grants’ (£423 million), which is money provided to Councils to do specific jobs mainly for schools
and housing, and a ‘Settlement’ (£146.5 million), which is divided up among all of the Councils in the
country based on need and deprivation. We also receive £111 million from Council Tax and Business
Rates, £52 million in income from services and £19 million in ‘reimbursements’, which is where
organisations like the NHS pay us for delivering services on their behalf.

WHERE OUR MONEY IS SPENT:
£25 million
£204 million
£157 million

Back Office
Benefits and
Customer Services

£17 million

Capital Financing
Environment
Sports

£263 million

Page 44

£105 million

Education (schools)

£8 million

Social Care
and Health

Your Budget Explained

You will see from the chart on the previous page that most of the money is either spent on social care
and health (£204 million) or on education and schools (£263 million). We also spend £105 million on
services to protect and improve our environment, economy and housing, £8 million on sports and £157
million on benefits and customer services – including libraries and one stop shops. We spend £17
million on ‘capital financing’, which are costs associated with managing the Council’s finances and the
hundreds of buildings which services are run from, and we spend £25 million on ‘back office support’,
which are those services that you rarely see but are essential to keep the Council running – things like
human resources, Information Technology and finance.
If you look at both charts, you will see that next year our current services and plans are set to spend
£27.5 million more than we receive. That is the problem we are asking for your help in solving, and
why this consultation is so important.

WHERE OUR BUDGET GAP HAS COME FROM:

New Government Cuts
Savings Previously
Agreed for 2014/15

-£17.5
million
£21
million

Remaining Structural
Budget Deficit
£14
million

£8
million

£2
million

Unavoidable
Demographic Growth
Inflation

This year, we have to cope with new Government cuts of around £21 million. This wasn’t a surprise – as
you will know the Government has been cutting back on spending for a number of years now; so we
made £17.5 million worth of savings from the last consultation which we will feel the impact of next year.
We also have to deal with demographic growth, which will cost an extra £8 million, and unavoidable
inflation, which will cost an extra £2 million. Also, due to a series of factors including bad financial
management on our part and under funding, we have to correct our budgets for social care for adults
and children – that will cost £14 million.
All of this means that we need to make savings this year of £27.5 million. We have presented lots of
ideas for how we might do it – now we need to know what you think.

Page 45

Budget Principles

Wirral Council is facing unprecedented budget challenges. To make the savings being
demanded of us, and to continue to provide access to the services which our residents rely
on, is going to take radical thinking, determination and some extremely difficult decisions.

10%

38%
Being more efficient
Working together
Promoting independence
Targeting resources

34%

18%

The Leader of the Council has been, and remains,
determined to ensure that the budget options we
put forward lessen, as much as possible, the
impact on front line services and the most
vulnerable. That is the overriding principle upon
which these options have been developed.

3. Promoting Independence: Wirral has vibrant,
strong and cohesive communities. We will
make sure that our communities have the
tools, the confidence and the ability to help
themselves to address local needs and
improve residents’ lives.

Clearly, considering the amount of savings which
are required for the coming year, having some
affect on services is unavoidable. So, we have
developed a further four principles for developing
options, focussing as much as possible on the
running costs of the Council.

4. Targeting Resources: The sheer scale of our
financial challenges means that we cannot
continue to invest the same amounts of money
into some services, and they will need to be
reduced. We will work in partnership with you
to take these difficult decisions and to make
sure that our limited resources and services are
distributed in a way that is fair, equitable and
ensures they are targeted at those who need
them most.

1. Being More Efficient: We will make sure that
our services, our administration costs and our
processes are streamlined, efficient and
examples of national best practice to make sure
no money is wasted on bureaucracy when it
could be invested in services.
2. Working Together: We will work in genuine
partnership with the rest of the public sector and
organisations from the community, voluntary and
faith sector to ensure the highest level of
efficiency and the lowest levels of duplication to
get you the best value for your money as a Page
result.

The savings which are being proposed this year
are difficult. They impact on you, as a resident,
and they impact on our staff. They are tough
choices, but necessary ones, and if we are to be
successful we need to work together - staff,
residents, partners and Councillors. We have
made an excellent start, but the situation is very
challenging - please let us have your views.

46

Taking Part

We want everyone to be able to take part in this consultation. The options are difficult, they
are important, and we know they are tough choices. We have tried to make it as easy as
possible for everyone to take part.

More information about the budget options in
this document is available from our website, at
www.wirral.gov.uk/whatreallymatters.
You can also call into any Council building and
ask for copies.

If you would prefer an easy read version of this,
or one of other consultation documents, then
they are also available online - or you can
contact us via email at engage@wirral.gov.uk,
call into any Council building or call
0151 606 2030 and we will be happy to
send you a copy.

Page 47

Budget Options: Being More Efficient

Option:
Paying for Adult Social Care

Budget Savings:
2014/2015

2015/2016 2016/2017 TOTAL

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

1117

-

-

1117

Summary:
A major priority within adult social
services is to improve the method in
which services are charged for; ensuring it
is fair, equitable and effective.
This work is intended to ensure that everyone
using services are financially assessed
promptly and importantly that the appropriate
levels of charges and financial support for
vulnerable people is implemented.

This proposal includes:
• Charging interest of 4% on deferred
payment balances that remain outstanding
more than 56 days after the end of the
agreement.
• Increase the Council’s debt recovery rate
from the existing 85% to at least 87.5%.
• Ensure Extra Care Housing clients are
assessed under the fairer charging system.
• Make the rates for respite, short term
residential and long term residential equal
at £120 per week, as is the case at many
other Councils.
It is important that the Council ensures that
payments are collected promptly and in a
way that is clear and fair in order to deliver a
balanced budget, which has been a problem
in the past.

Page 48

Budget Options: Being More Efficient

Option:
Review of Transport
Depot and Fleet

Budget Savings:
2014/2015

2015/2016 2016/2017 TOTAL

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

100

-

-

100

Summary:
The transport budget has a turnover of
£8.9m and it is proposed that a £100,000
saving is achieved within depot and
vehicle maintenance costs.
This will be through a consolidation of all
vehicle and equipment maintenance for the
council on one site, a review of the vehicle
fleet, rationalising, modernising and reducing
where possible and developing partnerships
with neighbouring authorities.

Page 49

Budget Options: Working Together

Option:
Shared Services & Integration
(Adult Social Care)

Budget Savings:
2014/2015

2015/2016 2016/2017 TOTAL

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

608

10

1200

1818

Summary:
Efficiencies can be achieved through
sharing resources, in particular through
developing shared services across the
council and across borders to deliver
more efficient use of the workforce.
It is national policy to move to integration with
the NHS with the aim of improving and
streamlining services in the community. As
integrated teams are developed and
assessment and delivery arrangements are
streamlined there will be further opportunities
for management savings. As part of this
option, a single Health and Social Care
organisation will be developed, streamlining
and improving social care and health
services.

We will move towards this by:
• Reviewing front line services in preparation
for full integration.
• Reviewing support services alongside
service re-design and streamlined
assessment and recording arrangements.
• Reviewing with our NHS partners of the
arrangements for the integrated equipment
services – ensuring value for money.
• Reviewing Mental Health Services which
builds on the review and re-organisation
already undertaken by the NHS
Partnership Trust.
This option will deliver an improved,
streamlined, effective service for people using
services although it will bring an impact on
the number of jobs required.

Page 50

Budget Options: Working Together

Option:
Working in Partnership
with Schools

Option:
Accommodation for
16-17 Year Olds

Budget Savings:

Budget Savings:

2014/2015

2015/2016 2016/2017 TOTAL

2014/2015

2015/2016 2016/2017 TOTAL

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

600

-

-

600

915

300

-

1215

Summary:
When a 16/17 year old is assessed as
at risk of being homeless temporary
accommodation is sometimes required,
while their needs are assessed. Similarly,
young people leaving care to live more
independently also need to have their
needs assessed, and are frequently
placed in accommodation which is
purchased as required.
Supported accommodation is currently
purchased as required, this is not always the
most effective solution for these young
people. There are plans to develop a service
delivered by a specialist provider within a
Council owned property. This will not just
realise a saving, but will help deliver a better
service and outcomes for these young people.

Summary:
This option would involve the Council
working in partnership with schools to
ensure that our shared resources are
used most effectively and equitably to
provide the services our young people
need.
This option would involve working with
schools to share the costs and resources
required to deliver a number of services,
including school crossing patrols, school
improvement, the education social welfare
service and some of the early retirement
costs associated with school staff.

It is proposed that accommodation for care
leavers who are moving on to live more
independently, should in future be provided
by reconfiguring some aspects of existing
supporting people contracts to provide
accommodation to meet these young
people’s needs.

Page 51

Budget Options: Promoting Independence

Option:
Commissioning & Contracting
(Adult Social Care)

Budget Savings:
2014/2015

2015/2016 2016/2017 TOTAL

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

1905

165

-

2070

Summary:
The Council has significantly
strengthened its commissioning functions,
which has enabled a strong focus on
improving strategic commissioning,
procurement and arrangements for
ensuring contract compliance.
This option will ensure that every penny the
Council spends delivers value for money and
improved outcomes for people who use
services.
This work is effectively underpinned by key
strategic commissioning plans which cover:
prevention and early intervention, carers,
targeted support, learning disabilities and the
Market Position Statement. There is now a
developing and maturing relationship with
providers from all sectors and a clearer focus
in relation to commissioned services.

This proposal includes:
• A shared approach and understanding on
how Council funding is commissioned within
the community, voluntary and faith sectors.
• Improvements in the payment process to
providers and the introduction of Electronic
Care Monitoring.
• Efficiency derived through stronger
strategic commissioning.
• Savings derived through effective control
of contract inflation.
• Efficiency through review of high cost
external contracts and improved outcomes
through more effective arrangements in
serving people with learning disabilities.
• Most savings within this option come from
improving processes and procedures and
do not have any impact on the service
received by the public.
We will work with colleagues and partners in
the community, voluntary and faith sectors to
ensure any potential impact on them is
mitigated. There will be potential impact on
service users who may experience a change
in service provider, as a result however,
services should be more effectively aligned to
assessed eligible needs.

Page 52

Budget Options: Promoting Independence

Option:
Careers Advice and Guidance

Option:
Early Intervention to
Support Families

Budget Savings:

Budget Savings:

2014/2015

2015/2016 2016/2017 TOTAL

2014/2015

2015/2016 2016/2017 TOTAL

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

300

1950

-

2250

200

-

-

200

Summary:
The numbers of children becoming
looked after in Wirral is not any higher
than in comparable Councils; however
the children do remain in care here
longer than they should. This option
would focus on early intervention, and
supporting more children to safely leave
care and live with their families.

Summary:
This option refers to the Merseyside wide
contract to provide careers advice and
guidance to get young people into
education, employment or training. The
option would involve targeting the work to
provide most support to those people
who are not in education, employment or
training, or most at risk of becoming NEET.

Current spend on commissioning or
providing care for Looked After Children is
£16m per year from a total budget for
Specialist Services of £39m.

Importantly, this service is also provided to
young people who need it by many other
providers, including schools, colleges and
organisations within the voluntary and
community sector.

These proposals we will not compromise
children’s safely and welfare, which remains
our top priority and duty. The proposals
should reduce the number of children
needing more specialist intervention through
delivering targeted early help resulting in
fewer children needing specialist support and
providing capacity to support fewer children
to remain looked after for long periods of time.

Page 53

Budget Options: Promoting Independence

Option:
Service Design & Improvement
(Adult Social Care)

Budget Savings:
2014/2015

2015/2016 2016/2017 TOTAL

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

4148

1975

-

6123

Summary:
The Council is required to meet the needs
of those who are assessed as having
‘substantial’ or ‘critical’ needs as defined
within Fair Access to Care Guidance. The
Council currently spends £83.485m on
meeting assessed need.
Over the past year considerable work has
been undertaken to deliver efficiencies
through a programme of service re-design
and service improvement – thus ensuring that
the Council continues to meet its statutory
obligations.
The proposed ongoing efficiency is being
delivered through:
• Re-configuring intermediate care and reablement and through this reducing the
need for high levels of longer term support.
• Agreement with the NHS to utilising the
budget for delayed discharge
reimbursement for services that facilitate
better hospital discharge.
• Utilise the Social Care Fund grant more
effectively.
• Commission additional extra care housing
as an alternative to care home provision.

• Commission more responsive home care and
increase utilisation of assistive technology
• Adults and CYP work more effectively to
ensure smooth transition into adult services.
• Streamline assessment processes and
realign staffing.
• Introduce new IT system to support
streamlined assessment, recording and
production of management information and
intelligence.
• There is no proposal to close any day
centres and we will ensure fair and equal
access to all day services.
• Most savings within this option come from
improving processes and procedures and
do not have any impact on the service
received by the public.
The programme of improvement and redesign is aimed at ensuring that there is
greater choice for individuals and increased
opportunity to be supported at home. Care at
home is usually more cost effective and leads
to better outcomes for individuals. Service redesign requires an effective change
management programme and will affect the
way in which assessments are undertaken
and there is an impact on working practices.

Page 54

Budget Options: Targeting Resources

Option:
Children’s Centres

Budget Savings:
2014/2015

2015/2016 2016/2017 TOTAL

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

500

1500

-

2000

Summary:
The Council spends over £6 million on
providing Children’s Centres and
associated services. This budget option
would enable the Council to save £2m
over the next two years without closing
any centres, by reducing the front line staff
in Children’s Centres through restructuring
and reducing services at a number of
Children’s Centres.
We will maintain full service delivery at one
main site in each of the borough’s four
Constituency areas and use an Outreach
model to provide services from all the
remaining sites. This reduction would be
completed in a targeted, strategic fashion to
ensure the minimum amount of disruption for
the families using the services.

The Council has a statutory duty to ensure
that there are sufficient Children’s Centre
services for its population of children under
the age of five and their families. It is not
proposed to close any Centres at this stage –
this proposal will maintain services at four
Children’s Centres in the borough: Rock
Ferry, Seacombe, Pensby and Brombrough.
It will reduce the opening hours and services
available from the other twelve sites including
the two maintained nursery schools.

Page 55

Budget Options: Targeting Resources

Option:
Family, Parenting and
Youth Commissioning

Option:
Reducing Substance Misuse
and Teenage Pregnancies

Budget Savings:

Budget Savings:

2014/2015

2015/2016 2016/2017 TOTAL

2014/2015

2015/2016 2016/2017 TOTAL

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

200

300

-

500

160

-

-

160

Summary:
This budget option would see a saving of
£200,000 being made by targeting the
parenting, family and targeted youth
support services which are purchased
from private and voluntary organisations.
It would also see a further saving of
£300,000 being made through more
efficient and effective commissioning
arrangements in relation to family support.
It would lead to a reduction in the provision of
parenting and family support and youth
services and mean the service would be
almost entirely focussed on those children
and families with the highest level of need.

Summary:
This area has a partnership budget of
£650,000. The council pays other
providers to deliver some of this service
on its behalf. A budget saving of £60,000
could be reached by reducing the level of
service the council buys in around
preventing and treating substance misuse.
This option would also see a reduction of
£100,000 in the funding allocated by the
Council to a joint service aiming to reduce
the number of teenage pregnancies within
the borough.
Expertise, support and funding would still be
availbale from colleagues in Public Health.

Page 56

